
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________
 
1. Call t
 

2. Appro
 

3. Appro

A. D
 

4. Publi
 

5. New B

 A. E
 B. 9
 C. 32
   
6.   Old B
 

7.  Comm
 

8.  Repo
  

9 Publi
 

10.  Adjou

 

 

 

102
Phon

Thu

___________

o Order/Roll

oval of Agen

oval of Minu

December 17

c Comment 

Business:  

lection of Offi
29 Park Stre
29 Water Stre

Business:  

munications

orts of Office

c Comments

urnment: 

2 Butler Stree
e: 269‐857‐2

Plan
ursday, Janu

102 B
____________

 Call: 

nda: 

tes:   

7, 2015 

on Agenda I

icers (Chair &
eet re: Lot Lin
eet re: Specia

: 

rs and Comm

s:  Limit 3 min

et  P.O. Box
2603  Websi

nning Comm
uary 21, 2016
Butler Street
___________

tems: Limit 3

& Vice-Chair)
ne Adjustment
al Land Use (P

mittees: 

nutes 

x 86  Saugat
te: www.sau

mission Meeti
6 7PM Sauga
t, Saugatuck
___________

3 minutes  

t 
Public Hearin

tuck, MI 494
ugatuckcity.c

ing 
atuck City Ha
, MI 

___________

ng)  

53 
com 

all 

________________________ 



PROPOSED Minutes 
Saugatuck Planning Commission Meeting 
Saugatuck, Michigan, December 17, 2015 

 
The Saugatuck Planning Commission met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, 102 Butler Street, Saugatuck, 
Michigan. 

 
1. Call to Order by Chairperson Muir at 7:00 p.m. 
 
  Attendance: 
  Present: Hess, Muir, Crawford, Fox, Lewis & Schmidt 
  Absent: McPolin 
  Others Present: None 
 
2.  Approval of Agenda:  A motion was made by Schmidt, 2nd by Lewis, to approve the agenda as presented.  
Upon voice vote the motion carried unanimously. 
 
3.  Approval of Minutes:  A motion was made by Fox, 2nd by Hess, to approve the November 19, 2015 
meeting minutes as presented.  Upon voice vote the motion carried unanimously. 
 
4.  Public Comments (agenda items only): None 
 
5.  New Business:  
  A.  Tri-Community Plan Review: A motion was made by Schmidt, 2nd by Lewis, to recommend the Tri-
Community Master Plan draft to the Saugatuck City Council for review and approval of distribution to the 
surrounding communities and the West Michigan Regional Planning Commission pursuant to the Michigan 
Planning Enabling Act, PA 33 of 2008.  Upon voice vote the motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Yes: Schmidt, Lewis, Crawford, Fox, Muir 
No: None 
Absent: McPolin 
Abstained: Hess 
 
  B.  2016 Schedule of Meetings: A motion was made by Lewis, 2nd by Schmidt, to approve the 2016 
Schedule of Meetings as presented.  Upon voice vote the motion carried unanimously. 
 
6.  Old Business: None 
 
7.  Communications: None 
 
8.  Reports of Officers and Committees: None 
 
9.  Public Comments:   
 
10.  Adjournment: Chairperson Muir adjourned the meeting at 8:22 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Monica Nagel, CMC 
Saugatuck City Clerk 



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  F
 
 
MEETING
 
 

 

Shanna A
of  929  P
Street (0
and upda

Backgrou
vacant pa

Both  par
descripti
located. 
standard

Front setba

   Road fro

 

   Water fro
setback 

 

Side setbac

P

TO:  Pla
  Cit

FROM:  M
  Int
   

G DATE:  Ja

RE:  Ap
an

Ax has applie
Park  Street  (
3‐57‐009‐03
ates provide

und: In Janu
arcel on Par

rcels  curren
ons would m
Both parcel

ds as listed in

acks 

ont 
Wher
Street

Wher
feet f

ont 
The w
simila
maxim
hazar

“Simi
while
in hei

ck 10 fee

102 Butler 
Phone: 269‐8

anning Com
ty of Saugat

ichael Clark,
terim Zoning

nuary 21, 20

pplication 16
nd 03‐57‐009

ed for a lot l
(03‐57‐009‐0
34‐30). The p
ed for the Pla

uary 2014, th
k Street to a

ntly  as  show
meet the m
ls are PN‐B 
n Section 154

re the street eas
t and 12 feet fr

re the street eas
from centerline

water-front setb
ar structures w
mum setback s
rd area. 

ilar structure” 
e all accessory 
ight. 

et* 

 Street  P.O
857‐2603  W

 M

mission 
uck 

, AICP 
g Administra

016  

6‐002; Lot lin
9‐034‐30) 

ine adjustm
034‐20)  and
purpose of t
anning Comm

he Planning 
add addition

wn  on  the 
inimum req
Peninsula N
4.033 of the

sement is less t
rom center line

sement is 30' w
e on the west si

back shall be th
within 300 feet o
shall not exceed

shall mean tha
structures shal

. Box 86  Sa
Website: www

MEMORAND

ator  

ne adjustme

ent on beha
d  Sharon De
this memo is
mission mee

Commission
al square fo

plat  maps 
uirements f
North Rivers
 Zoning Cod

than 30' wide: 
e on the river si

wide or greater:
ide of Park Stre

he average setb
on either side o
d 25 feet. No s

at only principa
ll be compared

augatuck, M
w.saugatuck

DUM 

ent 929 Park 

alf of Steven
ewey,  the  va
s to provide
eting on Janu

n approved 
ootage to 100

and  as  pro
for the Zonin
side  (R‐1) an
de are as foll

14 feet from c
ide of Park Str

: 33 feet from c
eet. 

back for any ex
of the subject p
structure shall b

al structures sh
d whether garag

I 49453 
kcity.com 

Street (03‐5

 and Janice 
acant  lot  no
e a review of
uary 21, 201

a lot line ad
01 Park Stre

oposed  in  t
ng District  in
nd  the  requ
ows:  

enterline on th
reet 

centerline on th

xisting subject 
property side lo
be constructed

hall be compare
ge, gazebo or d

57‐009‐034‐

Van Hoof, o
orth  of  929 
f the inform
16. 

djustment fo
eet.  

the  revised 
n which the
ired dimens

he west side of 

he river side an

structure and a
ot line. The 

d within the floo

ed to each othe
deck over 24 in

20 

owner 
Park 
ation 

or the 

legal 
ey are 
sional 

Park 

nd 33 

all 

od 

er, 
nches 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 16‐002 
January 21, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 

For lots less than 66 feet wide, the side setbacks shall be 10% of the lot width on each side. 
Structures less than 3 feet from the lot line are subject to higher construction restrictions of the 
State Building Code. 

Rear setback 10 feet* 

Minimum lot area 8,712 square feet 

Minimum lot 
width 

66 feet 

Maximum lot 
coverage 

25% 

*  Except waterfront yards – see “water front setback” above 

  
Proposed Use: Mrs. Dewy is selling 5,770.715 square feet from the vacant lot on Park Street to 
the Van Hoofs to add into the square footage for 929 Park Street.   

Completeness of Submittal:  All applicable materials and information as required by the Zoning 
Code have been provided.   

Standards  for  Approval:  Since  this  project  is  a  lot  line  adjustment  of  platted  land,  section 
154.022(F)(6) of the Zoning Code requires Planning Commission approval as a Site Plan Review. 
Since  this  is  not  a  platted  property,  the  request will  not  require  City  Council  approval.  The 
standards  for  site  plan  approval,  found  in  Section  154.064  of  the  Code  of  Ordinances  are 
applicable. These standards are as follows:  

(A) All elements of  the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized  in  relation  to 
topography, the size and type of  lot, the character of adjoining property and the type and 
size of the buildings. The site will be so developed as not to impede the normal and orderly 
development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in this chapter. 

Comment: The proposed  lot  line adjustment will not result  in any new buildable parcels, and 
will  result  in  the  elimination  of  a  legal  description  error  and  nonconformity.  No  other 
modifications  to  the  structures,  topography,  size of buildings, or other changes are being 
proposed as part of  this  request.   Therefore,  the Planning Commission may  find  that  this 
standard is met.  

(B) The  landscape shall be preserved  in  its natural state,  insofar as practical, by removing only 
those  areas  of  vegetation  or  making  those  alterations  to  the  topography  which  are 
reasonably  necessary  to  develop  the  site  in  accordance  with  the  requirements  of  this 
chapter. 

Comment: The proposed  lot  line adjustment will not substantially alter the vegetation on the 
site.  Therefore, the Planning Commission may find that this standard is met.  

(C) The site plan shall provide reasonable visual and sound privacy for all dwelling units located 
therein. Fences, walks, barriers and landscaping shall be used, as appropriate, to accomplish 
these purposes. 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 16‐002 
January 21, 2016 
Page 3 

 
Comment: The proposed  lot  line adjustment will not have an  impact on reasonable visual and 

sound private  for  all dwellings  as one of  the  two  lots  is  currently  vacant.  Therefore,  the 
Planning Commission may find that this standard is met.  

(D)  All buildings or groups of buildings shall be arranged so as to permit necessary emergency 
vehicle access as required by the Fire Department. 

Comment: The proposed lot line adjustment will not have any impacts on the vehicle access by 
the fire department or other emergency services. Therefore, the Planning Commission may 
find that this standard is met.  

(E) There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is separated from the vehicular 
circulation  system.  In  order  to  ensure public  safety,  special pedestrian measures,  such as 
crosswalks,  crossing  signals  and  other  such  facilities may  be  required  in  the  vicinity  of 
schools, playgrounds,  local  shopping areas and other uses which generate a  considerable 
amount of pedestrian traffic. All  federal, state and  local barrier  free requirements shall be 
met. 

Comment:  The  proposed  lot  line  adjustment  does  not  require  any  additional  pedestrian 
circulation  system.  Therefore,  the  Planning  Commission may  find  that  this  standard  not 
applicable.  

(F)  The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be 
connected  to  existing  or planned  streets and pedestrian  or bicycle pathways  in  the area. 
Streets and drives which are part of an existing or planned street pattern serving adjacent 
development shall be of a width appropriate to the traffic volume they will carry and shall 
have a dedicated right‐of‐way equal to that specified in the city’s land use plan. 

Comment: The applicant is not proposing the installation of any additional roads or pedestrian 
paths. Therefore, the Planning Commission may find that this standard is not applicable. 

(G) All streets shall be developed  in accordance with city specifications, unless developed as a 
private road. 

Comment:  The  applicant  is  not  proposing  any  additional  roads.  Therefore,  the  Planning 
Commission may find that this standard is not applicable. 

 (H)  Appropriate measures  shall  be  taken  to  ensure  that  removal  of  surface waters will  not 
adversely affect neighboring properties or the public storm drainage system. Provisions shall 
be made to accommodate storm water, prevent erosion and the formation of dust. The use 
of detention/retention ponds may be  required.  Surface water on all paved areas  shall be 
collected at  intervals so that  it will not obstruct the  flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic, 
create puddles in paved areas or create erosion problems. 

Comment: The proposed  lot  line adjustment will not result  in any additional structures at this 
time. Therefore, the Planning Commission may find that this standard is met. 

(I) All loading and unloading areas and outside storage areas, including areas for the storage of 
trash, which  face or are  visible  from  residential districts or public  thoroughfares,  shall be 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 16‐002 
January 21, 2016 
Page 4 

 
screened by an opaque wall or  landscaped screen not  less  than six  feet  in height.  (See §§ 
154.142 through 154.144). 

Comment: The  applicant  is not proposing  the  installation of  any  loading or unloading  areas. 
Therefore, the Planning Commission may find that this standard is not applicable. 

(J)   Exterior lighting shall be arranged so that it is deflected away from adjacent properties and 
so  that  it  does  not  impede  the  vision  of  traffic  along  adjacent  streets.  Flashing  or 
intermittent lights shall not be permitted. 

Comment: The applicant is not proposing the installation of any additional lighting. Therefore, 
the Planning Commission may find that this standard is not applicable. 

(K)  In approving the site plan, the Planning Commission may recommend that a bond or other 
financial guarantee of ample sum be  furnished by  the developer  to ensure compliance  for 
such  requirements  as  drives,  walks,  utilities,  parking,  landscaping  and  the  like  (see  § 
154.173). 

Comment: The project is small enough in nature and not likely to create adverse impacts on the 
neighboring properties. Therefore staff does not recommend a bond requirement  for  this 
project.   

Further  Review:  The  proposed  lots will  increase  in  square  footage, will  not  exceed  the  4:1 
depth to width ratio, and will result in the reduction of potential nonconformities.  

Recommendation:  Staff  can  recommend  approval  of  the  proposed  lot  line  adjustment  as 
proposed.  If the Planning Commission  finds that the standards are met, the  following motion 
may be used:  

I hereby move to (approve/deny) the lot line adjustment/ site plan request for application 16‐
002 for 03‐57‐009‐034‐20 and 03‐57‐009‐034‐30 as  indicated  in the staff report dated January 
21, 2016 and submitted legal description’s, finding that the request (meets/ does not meet) the 
standards listed in Section 154.064 and the Community Residential zoning regulations as listed 
in Section 154.033 of the Zoning Code.  

  



1/8/2016









 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  F
 
 
MEETING
 
 

 

Kimberly
outdoor 
provide a
public he

Backgrou
structure
property
permitte
for outdo
be  issued
the prop
2).  

Proposed
is  reque
located o

Complet

Standard
Section 
standard
154.092(

P

TO:  Pla
  Cit

FROM:  M
  Int
   

G DATE:   Ja

RE:  Ap
Ou

y Bale has a
seating for 
a  review of 
earing.  

und:    The  p
e,  but  has  b
y  is zoned W
d use by rig
oor seating a
d. The prope
erty to the 

d Use:  The 
sting  appro
on private pr

eness of Sub

ds for Appro
154.060(C) 
ds,  Section 
(P) regarding

102 Butler 
Phone: 269‐8

anning Com
ty of Saugat

ichael Clark,
terim Zoning

anuary 21, 2

pplication 15
utdoor Seati

pplied  for a
a propose r
the  informa

property  at 
been  home 
Water Street 
ght.     Furthe
and for a rec
erties to the
west on the

applicant is 
oval  to  serv
roperty.   

bmittal: All r

oval: There a
requires  sit
154.092(O) 
g the issuanc

 Street  P.O
857‐2603  W

 M

mission 
uck 

, AICP 
g Administra

016 

5‐086; 329 W
ing.   

a  special  lan
estaurant at
ation provid

329 Water 
to multiple
East (C‐2), a
rmore, 154.
commendati
e North, Sou
e opposite si

proposing t
e  alcohol  fo

requested m

are four sets
te  plan,  Sec
listing  spe

ce of a liquo

. Box 86  Sa
Website: www

MEMORAND

ator  

Water Street

d approval 
t 329 Water
ded  for  the 

Street was
e  retail  uses
and per Sec
.049 require
ion to City C
uth, and Eas
ide of Wate

to open a ne
or  onsite  c

materials hav

s of standard
ction  154.08
cific  standa
r license.  

augatuck, M
w.saugatuck

DUM 

t, Special Lan

for  the  sale
r Street. The
January 21,

s  originally  c
s  over  the  p
ction 154.03
es Planning C
Council befor
st are also z
r Street is zo

ew restauran
onsumption

ve been subm

ds that will a
82  regardin
ards  for  ou

I 49453 
kcity.com 

nd Use & Alc

e and  servic
e purpose of
, 2016 Plann

constructed 
past  few  ye
9 restauran
Commission
re any new l
zoned Water
oned Water

nt and as pa
n  and  outdo

mitted.  

apply as par
ng  general  s
tdoor  seati

cohol Service

ce of alcoho
f this memo
ning Commi

as  a  reside
ears.  The  su
ts are  listed
n special  land
liquor licens
r Street East
r Street Sout

art of the req
oor  seating 

rt of this req
special  land
ng,  and  Se

e and 

l and 
o is to 
ission 

ential 
ubject 
d as a 
d use 
e can 
t and 
th (C‐

quest 
fully 

quest.  
d  use 
ection 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 15‐086 
January 21, 2016 
Page 2 

 
Standards Part 1: Because this approval includes the use of the side porch for outdoor seating 
area  and  lawn  for  activity,  Section 154.064 of  the Code of Ordinances  are  applicable.  These 
standards are as follows:  

(A) All elements of  the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized  in  relation  to 
topography, the size and type of  lot, the character of adjoining property and the type and 
size of the buildings. The site will be so developed as not to impede the normal and orderly 
development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in this chapter. 

Comment: This structure  is  in the core of downtown with several other restaurants and retail 
shops within close proximity. The subject parcel has an area that is mostly screened and is 
fenced  in to provide for a minimal  impact to the surrounding uses. Therefore the Planning 
Commission may find this standard is met.   

(B) The  landscape shall be preserved  in  its natural state,  insofar as practical, by removing only 
those  areas  of  vegetation  or  making  those  alterations  to  the  topography  which  are 
reasonably  necessary  to  develop  the  site  in  accordance  with  the  requirements  of  this 
chapter. 

Comment:  The  applicant  is  not  proposing  disruption  to  any  natural  elements  on  the  site. 
Therefore, the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

(C) The site plan shall provide reasonable visual and sound privacy for all dwelling units located 
therein. Fences, walks, barriers and landscaping shall be used, as appropriate, to accomplish 
these purposes. 

Comment: The applicant  is proposing  limited hours of operation  to prevent disruption  to  the 
surrounding uses. Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.   

(D)  All buildings or groups of buildings shall be arranged so as to permit necessary emergency 
vehicle access as required by the Fire Department. 

Comment: The proposed addition will not disrupt access by the fire department. Therefore the 
Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

(E) There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is separated from the vehicular 
circulation  system.  In  order  to  ensure public  safety,  special pedestrian measures,  such as 
crosswalks,  crossing  signals  and  other  such  facilities may  be  required  in  the  vicinity  of 
schools, playgrounds,  local  shopping areas and other uses which generate a  considerable 
amount of pedestrian traffic. All  federal, state and  local barrier  free requirements shall be 
met. 

Comment:  The  applicant  is  not  providing  any modifications  to  the  vehicular  or  pedestrian 
circulation systems outside of the structure. Therefore this standard my not be applicable to 
this request.  



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 15‐086 
January 21, 2016 
Page 3 

 
(F)  The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be 

connected  to  existing  or planned  streets and pedestrian  or bicycle pathways  in  the area. 
Streets and drives which are part of an existing or planned street pattern serving adjacent 
development shall be of a width appropriate to the traffic volume they will carry and shall 
have a dedicated right‐of‐way equal to that specified in the city’s land use plan. 

Comment:  The  applicant  is  not  providing  any modifications  to  the  vehicular  or  pedestrian 
circulation systems outside of the structure. Therefore this standard my not be applicable to 
this request. 

(G) All streets shall be developed  in accordance with city specifications, unless developed as a 
private road. 

Comment:  The  applicant  is  not  providing  any modifications  to  the  vehicular  or  pedestrian 
circulation systems outside of the structure. Therefore this standard my not be applicable to 
this request.  

(H)   Appropriate measures  shall  be  taken  to  ensure  that  removal  of  surface waters will  not 
adversely affect neighboring properties or the public storm drainage system. Provisions shall 
be made to accommodate storm water, prevent erosion and the formation of dust. The use 
of detention/retention ponds may be  required.  Surface water on all paved areas  shall be 
collected at  intervals so that  it will not obstruct the  flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic, 
create puddles in paved areas or create erosion problems. 

Comment: The applicant is not proposing any modifications to the surface areas as part of this 
request. Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

(I) All loading and unloading areas and outside storage areas, including areas for the storage of 
trash, which  face or are  visible  from  residential districts or public  thoroughfares,  shall be 
screened by an opaque wall or  landscaped screen not  less  than six  feet  in height.  (See §§ 
154.142 through 154.144). 

Comment: The applicant is not proposing any outdoor storage areas or the modification to the 
loading/unloading areas. Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

(J)   Exterior lighting shall be arranged so that it is deflected away from adjacent properties and 
so  that  it  does  not  impede  the  vision  of  traffic  along  adjacent  streets.  Flashing  or 
intermittent lights shall not be permitted. 

Comment: The applicant is not proposing any additional exterior lighting at this time. Therefore 
this standard is not applicable to this request.  

(K)  In approving the site plan, the Planning Commission may recommend that a bond or other 
financial guarantee of ample sum be  furnished by  the developer  to ensure compliance  for 
such  requirements  as  drives,  walks,  utilities,  parking,  landscaping  and  the  like  (see  § 
154.173). 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 15‐086 
January 21, 2016 
Page 4 

 
Comment: The project  is minor enough  in nature  that Staff does not  recommend a bond be 

required.   

Standards Part 2: Section 154.082 of the Zoning Ordinance provides standards for special land 
use  approvals.  These  are  the  standards  that  the  Planning  Commission  should  use  when 
determining a course of action, and are as follows: 

(A) Before any Special Land Use permit is granted, the Planning Commission shall make findings 
of  fact based upon competent evidence certifying compliance with  the specific  regulations 
governing  individual Special Land Uses and,  in addition, ensure  that  the  following general 
standards have been met. Each proposed Special Land Use shall: 

(1) In  location,  size, height and  intensity of  the principal and/or accessory operations, be 
compatible with the size, type and kind of buildings, uses and structures  in the vicinity 
and on adjacent property; 

Comment:  The  addition  physical  elements  and  proposed  changes  are  compatible  with 
surrounding structures. Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

 (2) Be consistent with and promote the intent and purpose of this chapter; 

Comment: The goal of  this district  is  to  contain a mix of  commercial uses  to  serve a  tourist 
population and work with the waterfront businesses. The proposed activities on side meet that 
purpose. Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.   

(3) Be compatible with the natural environment and conserve natural resources and energy; 

Comment:  The  applicant  is  proposing  to  reuse  the  existing  structure  and  resources. 
Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

(4) Be  consistent  with  existing  and  future  capabilities  of  public  services  and  facilities 
affected by the proposed use; 

Comment:  The  proposed  modifications  are  minor  enough  in  nature  that  they  will  not 
adversely  impact the future capabilities of public services and facilitates. Therefore the 
Planning Commission may find this standard is met. 

(5) Protect  the public health,  safety and welfare as well as  the  social and economic well‐
being of those who will use the land use or activity, residents, businesses and landowners 
immediately adjacent and the city as a whole; 

Comment: The commercial activity of this district  is consistent with the proposed use and 
the additional restaurant use may further add to the character by adding an additional 
dinning  destination  in  downtown.  Therefore  the  Planning  Commission may  find  this 
standard is met.  

(6) Not create any hazards arising from storage and use of inflammable fluids; 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 15‐086 
January 21, 2016 
Page 5 

 
Comment:  The  restaurant  use  will  need  to  conform  to  all  applicable  fire  codes  and 

regulations, and the applicant has noted that they will not be adding a fryer. Therefore 
the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.     

(7) Not  be  in  conflict with  convenient,  safe  and  normal  vehicular  and  pedestrian  traffic 
routes,  flows,  intersections  and  general  character  and  intensity  of  development.  In 
particular: 

(a) The property shall be easily accessible to fire and police; and 

Comment: The proposed modifications will not alter the accessibility to fire and police.     

(b) Not create or add to any hazardous traffic condition; 

Comment: The applicant  is not proposing any modifications to the entry way or proposing 
anything  that  would  create  or  add  to  hazardous  traffic  conditions.  Therefore  the 
Planning Commission may find this standard is met.    

(8) Be of such a design and  impact that the  location and height of buildings, the  location, 
nature and height of walls, fences and the nature and extent of landscaping on the site 
shall not hinder or discourage  the appropriate development and use of adjacent  land 
and buildings or impair the value thereof; 

Comment:  The  applicant  is  proposing  to  use  the  existing  structure  and  applicable  site 
features  including  the  lawn  space.  Therefore  the  Planning  Commission may  find  this 
standard is met.     

(9) That in the nature, location, size and site layout of the use, be a harmonious part of the 
district  in  which  it  is  situated  taking  into  account,  among  other  things,  prevailing 
shopping  habits,  convenience  of  access  by  prospective  patrons,  the  physical  and 
economic relationship of one type of use to another and characteristic groupings of uses 
of the district; and 

Comment: The applicant is looking to open a restaurant within an existing restaurant space. 
Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.     

(10) That  in the  location, size,  intensity and site  layout be such that operations will not be 
objectionable to nearby dwellings, by reason of noise, fumes, pollution, vibration,  litter, 
refuse, glare or flash of lights to an extent which is greater than would be operations of 
any use permitted by right for that district within which the Special Land Use is proposed 
to be located. 

Comment: While  there  are  dwellings within  the  approximate  area,  the  character  of  the 
district  as  a whole will  not  be  adversely  impacted  by  the  proposed  activity  on  site. 
Furthermore,  the  applicant  will  still  need  to  conform  to  any  nuisance  regulations 
pertaining  to  the  activities  on  site.  Therefore  the  Planning Commission may  find  this 
standard is met.  



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 15‐086 
January 21, 2016 
Page 6 

 
(B)  The  Planning  Commission  shall  consult  the  city  land  use  plan  to  determine  if  the 

proposed  Special  Land Use  is  compatible with  the  future  planned  use  of  surrounding 
property and may limit the permit so as not to conflict with future planned land use. The 
duration of the permit may be limited only if such use is clearly temporary in nature. 

Comment: The Tri‐Community Plan supports this request in multiple locations, specifically it 
will  serve  both  local  and  tourist  population,  is  located within  a  commercial  area  as 
indicated on  the  future  land use map, and will  reutilize an existing historic  structure. 
Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

Standards  Part  3:  Section  154.082(O)  of  the  Zoning  Code  also  provides  for  additional 
regulations the service of alcohol.  

 (O)   Restaurants with outdoor seating. The inclusion of outdoor seating shall be viewed as an 
expansion of a commercial business and shall meet the following standards: 

Comment: 

(1) Tables,  chairs,  or  similar  features  shall  not  have  display  signage  or  emblems 
representative of the restaurant; 

Comment: The applicant is not proposing any signage or emblems on the seats or tables. 
Therefore the Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

(2) Outdoor seating area shall be on a fully  improved surface of concrete, paver brick, or 
similar solid material; 

Comment: Early discussion with the applicant indicated that there may be some seating on the 
deck area, however if seating is to be provided on the lawn area, further improvements will be 
needed. This could include small sections with pavers or similar materials if needed. The 
Commission should seek further clarification for the applicant regarding this. However the 
applicant could use the lawn area for other activities including patrons standing and waiting for 
a table.  

(3) If alcohol is served, area shall meet all applicable local, state, and federal regulations; 
and 

Comment: The applicant has submitted for all applicable permits and licenses. Therefore the 
Planning Commission may find this standard is met.  

      (4)    Seating and service within the right‐of‐way shall be classified as a special land use 
regardless of the zoning district and shall also meet the following standards: 

Comment: The applicant is not proposing seating within the right of way, therefore the 
remaining standards do not apply.  

 



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 15‐086 
January 21, 2016 
Page 7 

 
Standards  Part  4:  Section  154.082(P)  of  the  Zoning  Code  also  provides  for  additional 
regulations the service of alcohol.  

1. Any  new  establishment  seeking  a  license  for  the  sale  or  consumption  of  beer, 
wine, or alcoholic beverages on‐premises shall require special land use approval and site 
plan review in accordance with this section. 

Comment: The applicant has provided this application to meet this standard.  

2. The applicant  shall provide a  copy of any  licensing materials  submitted  to  the 
Liquor Control Commission. 

Comment: The applicant will be providing copies of this documentation to the City before 
the meeting.  

3. The applicant  shall provide a  site plan  illustrating  the proposed  location where 
the  alcohol  sales would  occur,  as well  as  all  other  locations where  on‐premises  sales 
presently exist within a one  thousand‐foot  radius of  the closest  lot  lines of  the subject 
site. 

Comment: The attached site plan shows the  location of the restaurant, the  location of the 
outdoor seating, and other site improvements.  

4. The  proposed  establishment  must  promote  the  city's  economic  development 
goals  and  objectives,  and must  be  consistent with  the  city's master  plan  and  zoning 
ordinance. 

Comment: The proposed request would reoccupy an existing space that once held a retail 
establishment. This would provide for an additional tourist destination within the area.  

5. Given the character, location, development trends and other aspects of the area 
in which the proposed use or change in use is requested, the applicant shall demonstrate 
that the use will: rejuvenate an underutilized property or an identifiable area within the 
city;  or  provide  a  unique  business model,  service,  product,  or  function;  or  add  to  the 
diversity of the to the city or to an identifiable area within the city; or that the addition 
of the use or proposed change  in use will be otherwise a benefit or asset to the city or 
identifiable area.  

Comment: The proposed request would reoccupy an existing space that once held a retail 
establishment.  Furthermore,  this  use  is  constant with  several  other  restaurants  that  are 
within a two block radius of the subject property.  

6. The applicant must demonstrate that the use or change in use as constructed and 
operated    is  compatible with  the  area  in which  it will  be  located,  and will  not  have  
appreciable negative secondary effects on the area, such as:  



City of Saugatuck Planning Commission 
Application 15‐086 
January 21, 2016 
Page 8 

 
(a)  Vehicular  and  pedestrian  traffic,  particularly  during  late  night  or  early 

morning hours that might disturb area residents.  

Comment: The proposed  location does not have onsite parking, but  is  located  in an area 
with  on‐street  parking.  This  aids  other  retail  businesses  as  patrons will  be walking  from 
parking elsewhere in the downtown to the subject property, thus increasing the pedestrian 
activity.   

(b)  Noise,  odors,  or  lights  that  emanate  beyond  the  site's  boundaries  onto 
property in the area on which there are residential dwellings.  

Comment:  The  Planning  Commission  may  want  to  discuss  additional  landscaping  and 
screening is needed beyond the existing features on site.   

(c)  Excessive numbers of persons gathering outside the establishment. 

Comment: The subject site is located within a commercial zoning district which has an existing 
pedestrian activity.   

(d)  Peak hours of use that add to congestion or other negative effects in the 
neighborhood. 

Comment: The Planning Commission may want to further discuss the hours of operation with 
the applicant.  

Recommendation: If the Planning Commission finds that the standards are met, then staff can 
recommend  approving  the  Special  Land Use/Site  Plan  request  for  the  outdoor  seating  area. 
Additionally,  if the Planning Commission finds that all the standards have been met, Staff can 
recommend  the  Planning  Commission making  a  recommendation  to  approve  the  requested 
Alcohol Service permit to the City Council for their review and possible approval. 

 

The following motions may be used: 

Motion to (Approve/Deny) application 15‐086: 329 Water Street for the use of outdoor areas 
for  seating and/or  service  finding  conditions  in Section 154.060(C)  site plan, Section 154.082 
regarding general special  land use standards, Section 154.092(O)  listing specific standards  for 
outdoor seating (have/have not) been met.  
 
Motion to recommend (approval/denial) for the sales and service of alcoholic beverage finding 
that the standards in Section 154.092(P) (have/have not) been met.  

 

 






















